
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

January 22, 2020

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency 
John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development  
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director  
Khoi Do, City Engineer 
Chief Derek Williams, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Julie Bjork, Executive Director, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 



 
 

-2- 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Development Advisory Board Minutes of December 16, 2019, approved as written. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV19-066: A Development Plan to construct an 8,600-square foot medical 
office building on 0.918-acre of land generally located at the southeast corner of Begonia 
Avenue and Fourth Street, at 1129 West Fourth Street, within the CC (Community 
Commercial) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, 
Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located 
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and 
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) (APN: 1010-132-05). Submitted by Friends of 
Family Health Center.  This project was continued from December 16, 2019.  

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines § 15332 
       

2. File No. PDEV19-066 (Development Plan) 
 

Motion to Approve / Deny 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 
FILE NO. PDEV19-001: A Development Plan to construct a stealth wireless 
telecommunications facility (Verizon Wireless) and an equipment enclosure totaling 348 
square feet on approximately 5 acres of land (Creekside Park) located at 3151 East 
Riverside Drive, within the OS-R (Open Space-Recreational) zoning district. Staff has 
determined that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill 
Development projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. This project introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area 
of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

December 16, 2019

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Rudy Zeledon, Chairman, Planning Department  
Kevin Shear, Building Department  
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency  
Jesus Plasencia, Engineering Department 
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department  
Joe De Sousa, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation  
Peter Tran, Municipal Utilities Company  
Emily Hernandez, Police Department  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Raymond Lee, Engineering Department 
Charles Mercier, Planning Department 
Derrick Womble, Development Agency 
Eric Woosley, Engineering Department 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the December 2, 2019, meeting
of the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr.  Ehrman; and
approved unanimously by those present (5-0).  Mr. De Sousa, Mr. Plasencia, and Mr. Tran recused
themselves as they did not attend this meeting.

Item A - 1 of 3



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – December 16, 2019 
Page 2 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PDEV19-066: A Development Plan to construct an 8,600-square foot medical office building on 0.918-
acre of land generally located at the southeast corner of Begonia Avenue and Fourth Street, at 1129
West Fourth Street, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. The project is
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1010-132-05) submitted by Friends of Family
Health Center.

Applicant Bahram Bahremand, Chief Executive Officer, of Friends of Family Health Center   
was present.  Mr. Bahremand thanked the board for working on expediting the project.  Mr. 
Bahremand then explained to the board the organization’s background and its objectives.  He 
explained that the organization is non-profit and provides services to the community and does not 
deny services to anyone.  Mr. Bahremand then went to to explain that they would not be able to 
finance the conditions that were set forth in the staff report.  He stated he thought the requirments 
seemed excessive for the project scale and scope of work.  Mr. Zeledon asked Mr. Bahremand if 
he could identify the specific conditions that concerned him, at which time Mr. Bahremand stated 
his architect would provide a list but reiterated that the scope of work would require them to exceed 
their financial and time obligations.  Mr. Zeledon then asked Mr. Bahremand if the federal grant 
has time restrictions.  Mr. Bahremand explained it did and they had already received a time 
extension.  He then thanked Mr. Zeledon and the board for their time and asked that his architect, 
Behrouze Ehdaie, speak on the project.   

Mr. Ehdaie stated he reviewed the conditions and was surprised to see the wide range of 
requirements.  He then referred to the removal of the power poles, installation of a new fire hydrant 
as well as new street lights, the grinding and adding of new asphalt, and the landscape conditions 
which requires an arborist.  He stated these conditions would incur costs that would exceed their 
budget.  Mr. Zeledon stated he understands their organization is non-profit; however, with projects 
that are submitted there are standard requirements that are required.  He reiterated that the city is 
very business friendly and offered Mr. Bahremand a continuance of the meeting so he could work 
with the Planning and Engineering Departments or move forward with a decision today. Mr. 
Bahremand epxressed his concern with time and informed Mr. Zeledon that construction would 
have to start immediately.  Mr. Zeledon said he understood his concern but explained that once the 
building is demolished, it constitutes a new project and scope of work.  

Mr. Jesus Plasencia, Engineering Department, said he also unerstands the financial aspect of this 
organization; however, the offsite improvements are in the municipal code and are consistent with 
the conditions of these types of projects.  Mr. Bahremand responded they would be happy to 
remove the trees and felt they would already be bringing value to the community; however, it would 
not be feasible to continue with the conditions.  Mr. Zeledon responded that Planning Department 
can work with them on the landscaping but the engineering conditions are standard.  

Mr. Raymond Lee, Assistant City Engineer, stated it would be necessary to address each condition 
today if they wanted an immediate decision.  He also stated that most of these conditions are a 
safety matter and while he could work with him on certain conditions, some would remain because 
they are standard for safety concerns.  Mr. Lee stated staff could work with them on the paving 

Item A - 2 of 3



Item A - 3 of 3



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
January 22, 2020 

DECISION NO.: 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-066 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct an 8,600-square foot medical office building on 
0.918-acre of land generally located at the southeast corner of Begonia Avenue and Fourth Street, at 1129 
West Fourth Street, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district; (APN:1010-132-05) submitted 
by Friends of Family Health Center. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

FRIENDS OF FAMILY HEALTH CENTER, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an 
application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-066, as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.918-acre of land located at the
southeast corner of Begonia Avenue and Fourth Street, at 1129 West Fourth Street, and is depicted in 
Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and 
specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Retail Building & 
Vacant Property General Commercial CC (Community 

Commercial) N/A 

North: 
Multiple-Family 

Residential & Elks 
Lodge 

Medium Density 
Residential (11.0 to 

25.0 DUs/Acre) 

MDR-25 (18.1 to 25.0 
DUs/Acre) N/A 

South: Motor Vehicle Repair & 
Storage General Commercial CC (Community 

Commercial) N/A 

East: Motor Vehicle Sales. 
Repair & Storage General Commercial CC (Community 

Commercial) N/A 

West: Multiple-Family 
Residential Office/Commercial OL (Light Office) N/A 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — The Applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to
construct an 8,600-square foot medical office building on the above-described project site, having a floor 
area ratio (FAR) of 0.22. The project site was previously developed with a commercial center that was 
partially destroyed by fire and the remnant structure has since been razed. An approximate 4,600-square 
foot commercial building, which was unaffected by the previous fire, remains at the northwest corner of the 
site and will be razed prior to the construction on of the proposed medical office building. 

Item B - 1 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 2 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The proposed office building is located at the 
northwest corner of the project site, fronting onto both Fourth Street and Begonia Avenue, and a 20-foot 
landscaped setback has been provided from each street. The building’s main entrance faces south, toward 
the project’s off-street parking facilities.  
 

(c) Site Access/Circulation — Two points of vehicular access are proposed, which are 
located at the northeast and south west corners of the project site, accessing Fourth Street and Begonia 
Avenue, respectively. A 24-foot wide drive aisle allows for circulation through the site and connects the two 
driveways (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached). 
 

(d) Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the “Medical 
Offices” parking standards specified in the Development Code. The proposed medical office requires a total 
of 49 off-street parking spaces, and 49 spaces have been provided, consistent minimum Development 
Code requirements. 
 

(e) Architecture — Architecturally, the proposed medical office building incorporates a 
fine sand exterior plaster, tile wainscot, wood cornice, wood/metal and canvas canopies, storefront glazing 
system with clear glass having a low-emissivity coating, and decorative light fixtures entries (see Exhibit 
C—Elevations, attached). The mechanical equipment for the industrial warehouse building will be roof-
mounted and obscured from public view by the parapet walls and, if necessary, equipment screens, which 
will incorporate design features consistent with the building architecture. Staff believes that the proposed 
project illustrates the type of high-quality architecture promoted by the Development Code. This is 
exemplified through the use of: (i) articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a recessed wall area; 
(ii) articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries and breaks 
up large expanses of building wall; (iii) a mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures; (iv) incorporation of 
base and top treatments defined by changes in color, materials, and recessed wall areas; and (v) the 
building was designed to ensure that its massing and proportion, along with its colors and architectural 
detailing, are consistent throughout all four building elevations. 
 

(f) Landscaping —The project provides landscaping along the street frontages, the 
perimeter of the site, and throughout the parking lot. The Development Code requires that the Project 
provide a minimum 13 percent landscape coverage and 27 percent has been provided. Moreover, a 
combination of 24-, 36-, and 48-inch box accent and shade trees will be provided throughout the project 
site, in addition to a variety of shrubs and groundcovers that are low water usage and drought tolerant. The 
proposed on-site and off-site landscape improvements will assist towards creating a walkable, safe area 
for pedestrians to access the project site (see Exhibit D—Landscape Plan, attached). 
 

(g) Utilities (drainage, sewer) —Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve 
the project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan 
(PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality 
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by 
minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices 
(BMPs), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes the 
use of an underground stormwater infiltration system for the project. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed 
to the public street by way of parkway culverts. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, 
commencing with Public Resources Code Section 21000 (hereinafter referred to as "CEQA"); and 
 

Item B - 2 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 3 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (hereinafter referred to as “ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within 
San Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of 
current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and continued the hearing at the Applicant’s request, to January 22, 2020, to allow time for the 
Applicant to clarify certain conditions of approval with appropriate Engineering Department staff; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2020, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded the hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making body for 
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record 
for the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all 
written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32: In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, and meets the following conditions: (a) the Project is consistent with the applicable general plan 
designation and all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and 
regulations; (b) the proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five 
acres and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; (c) the project site has no value as habitat for 

Item B - 3 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 4 

endangered, rare, or threatened species; (d) approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects 
relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and (e) the Project site is adequately served by all 
required utilities and public services. 
 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the decision-making body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of the Policy Plan (General 
Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of the properties in the Available Land 
Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical 
Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: ALUCP Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code 
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use 
airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be 
consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, 
the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use 
Compatibility Plan, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 
encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future 
land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace 
protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP 
Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification 
Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria 
set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the facts and information set forth in Parts I 
(Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), above, and the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 through 
3, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the General Commercia; land 
use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. The 
development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and 
maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed development is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to the establishment of a dynamic, 
progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and districts that foster a positive sense of identity and 
belonging among residents, visitors, and businesses (Goal CD1). Furthermore, the project will promote the 
City’s policy to take actions that are consistent with the City being a leading urban center in Southern 
California while recognizing the diverse character of our existing viable neighborhoods (Policy CD1-1); and 
 

Item B - 4 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 5 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the CC 
(Community Commercial) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed 
(Medical Office), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-
street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components 
of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land 
use being proposed (Medical Office). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has 
determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and 
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision, incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of January 2020. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item B - 5 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP  

PROJECT SITE 

FOURTH   STREET 

J   STREET 

PRINCETON   STREET 
E

LD
E

R
B

E
R

R
Y

   
A

V
E

N
U

E
 

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
   

A
V

E
N

U
E

 

P
A

LM
E

T
T

O
   

A
V

E
N

U
E

 
Item B - 6 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN  

Item B - 7 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS  

Item B - 8 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 9 

 Exhibit D—LANDSCAPE PLAN 

Item B - 9 of 39



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-066 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item B - 10 of 39



 
 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-066 
 
Related Files: N/A 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct an 8,600-square foot medical office building on 
0.918-acre of land generally located at the southeast corner of Begonia Avenue and Fourth Street, at 1129 
West Fourth Street, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district; (APN: 1010-132-05) submitted 
by Friends of Family Health Center. 
 
Prepared By: Charles Mercier, Principal Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2425 (direct) 
Email: cmercier@ontarioca.gov  

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2010. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item B - 11 of 39

mailto:cmercier@ontarioca.gov


Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-066 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), 
designed to confine emitted light to the parking areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until 
sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 

Item B - 12 of 39



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-066 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.11 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
and meets the following conditions: [i] the Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation 
and all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations;[ii] the 
proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, and is 
substantially surrounded by urban uses; [iii] the project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, 
or threatened species; [iv] approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, 
noise, air quality, or water quality; and [v] the Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities 
and public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final 
building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate 
established by resolution of the City Council. 

Item B - 13 of 39



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-066 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 

2.14 Additional Requirements.  
 

(a) The trash enclosure location shall be revised pursuant to the Police 
Department’s Memorandum dated December 3, 2019. The final trash enclosure location and design 
shall be subject to Planning Department, Police Department, and Solid Waste Department approval. 
 

(b) The trash enclosure shall be designed consistent with City standards, and 
shall include: [i] a minimum 6-FT high decorative masonry wall, with appropriate view-obstructing 
gates for container access, [ii] separate pedestrian access that is designed to screen the interior of 
the enclosure from view from the exterior and prevent refuse dispersion (Note: Pedestrian access 
may be gated for security purposes), and [iii] a decorative overhead roof structure to protect bins 
containing recyclable materials from adverse environmental conditions, which might render the 
collected materials unusable, and screen trash bins from view of the upper floors of adjacent 
dwellings. Furthermore, trash enclosures shall be architecturally enhanced in a manner consistent 
with the architectural design of building. 
 

(c) At the location where a change in parapet wall height meets (south exterior 
building elevation, at the building’s main entrance), the taller parapet shall return into the building 
for a minimum distance of 6 feet so that the actual thickness of the parapet wall cannot be readily 
discerned. 

Item B - 14 of 39



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV19-066

SEC Begonia Ave & Fourth Street

1010-132-05

4,600 SF commercial building to be demolished

A Development Plan to construct an 8,600 SF medical office building

.918

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

✔

✔

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Chuck Mercier

12/11/19

2019-068

n/a

18 FT

200 FT +

✔

Item B - 15 of 39



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

PRELIMINARY PLAN CORRECTIONS 
Sign Off 

 
12/02/19 

Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV19-066 

Case Planner: 
Charles Mercier 

Project Name and Location:  
Friends of Family Health Center 
1129 West Fourth Street 
Applicant/Representative: 
Behrouze Ehdaie 
12 Lago Sud 
Irvine, CA 92612 
 
 
 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 11/19/19) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS. 
Civil/ Site Plans 

1. Show on demo plans and landscape construction plans trees to be preserved or removed. Add tree 
protection notes on construction and demo plans to protect trees to remain.   

2. Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides. Coordinate with landscape plans; transformers 
shall not interfere with required tree locations in island planters. 

3. Locate utilities including light standards, fire hydrants, water, drain and sewer lines to not conflict 
with required tree locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape plans. 

4. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” below 
finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 

5. Add Note to Grading and Landscape Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has occurred due 
to grading activities and where trees or storm water infiltration areas are located shall be loosened 
by soil fracturing. For trees a 12’x12’x18” deep area; for storm water infiltration the entire area shall 
be loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The back hoe method of soil fracturing shall 
be used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of Compost is spread over the soil surface before 
fracturing is begun. The back hoe shall dig into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately 
back into the hole. The bucket then moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into 
the spaces between the soil chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with 
large soil clods. These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface 
after fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can 
be added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall be 
present during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional reference 
see Urban Tree Foundation – Planting Soil Specifications. 

Landscape Plans 
6. Provide a tree inventory as noted in #1. Show on demo plans and landscape construction plans 

trees to be preserved or removed. Add tree protection notes on construction and demo plans to 
protect trees to remain. 

7. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 
transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Do not encircle utility, show as masses and 
duplicate masses in other locations on regular intervals. 

Item B - 16 of 39

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


8. Locate light standards, fire hydrants, water and sewer lines to not conflict with required tree 
locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape plans. 

9. Show all utilities on the landscape plans. Coordinate so utilities are clear of tree locations. 
10. Note on landscape plans: for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished 

grades at 1 ½” below finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 
11. Show landscaping in the perimeter planters and trees spaced 30’ apart. 
12. Show parkway landscape max 18” high: such as Baccharis, Lonicera, Kurapia etc. and street trees 

spaced 30’ apart. 
13. Street trees for this project are: Fourth Street is Acacia farnesiana or Cercis canadensis ‘Oklahoma’ 

and Begonia is Gingko biloba ‘Autumn Gold’ per the Master Street Tree Plan. Use evergreen 
background trees to contrast with deciduous street trees (or the opposite) and triangularly space 
between them. 

14. Locate trees for shade on buildings, parking lots, seating areas and paving, screen blank walls and 
adjacent properties where missing, accent trees to entries and driveways, provide visibility to signs, 
windows and doors. Locate trees 50% of canopy width from walls, buildings, and existing trees. 

15. Show appropriate parking lot shade trees with min 30’ canopy at maturity; Quercus ilex or Pistacia 
chinensis. Provide larger accent trees at entries and larger planter spaces such as Quercus agrifolia.  

16. Call out type of proposed irrigation system (dripline and pop up stream spray tree bubblers with 
PCS). Include preliminary MAWA calcs. Proposed water use must meet water budget.  

17. Show landscape hydrozones on plan or legend with plants per WUCOLS. Moderate water plants 
may be used for part shade north and east facing locations, low water plants everywhere else. 

18. Overhead spray systems shall be designed for plant material less than the height of the spray head. 
19. Replace invasive, high water using, short lived, high maintenance or poor performing plants: Ground 

Morning Glory; consider Cistus. 
20. Show 8’ diameter of mulch only at new trees, 12’ min. at existing trees. Detail irrigation dripline 

outside of mulched root zone. 
21. Designer or developer to provide agronomical soil testing and include report on landscape 

construction plans. 
22. Construction plans shall be designed and signed by a licensed landscape architect. 
23. Show minimum on-site tree sizes per the Landscape Development standards, see the Landscape 

Planning website. 5% 48” box, 10% 36 box, 30% 24” box, 55% 15 gallon. 
24. Show 25% of trees as California native (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus wislizenii, 

Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis etc.) in appropriate locations. 
25. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
26. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are: 
 Plan Check—less than 5 acres ..............................................$1,301.00 
 Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase).........$278.00 
 Total…………………………………………………………..……$1,579.00 
 Inspection—Field – any additional.............................................. $83.00 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item B - 17 of 39

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Item B - 18 of 39



Item B - 19 of 39



Item B - 20 of 39



Item B - 21 of 39



Item B - 22 of 39



Item B - 23 of 39



Item B - 24 of 39



Item B - 25 of 39



Item B - 26 of 39



Item B - 27 of 39



Item B - 28 of 39



Item B - 29 of 39



Item B - 30 of 39



Item B - 31 of 39



Item B - 32 of 39



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Charles Mercier 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: November 20, 2019 

 SUBJECT: PDEV19-066 

 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 

1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply. 

 

 
 

KS:lr 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item B - 33 of 39



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO:  Charles Mercer, Principal Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  November 26, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-066 – A Development Plan to construct an 8,600-square foot 

medical office building on 0.918-acre of land generally located at the 

southeast corner of Begonia Avenue and Fourth Street, at 1129 West 

Fourth Street, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district 

(APN: 1010-132-05). 

 

 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 

 

 

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Not Listed (V-B) 

 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 

 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  8,600 Sq. Ft. 

 

D. Number of Stories:  1 

 

E. Total Square Footage:  8,600 Sq. Ft 

 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  B, S 

 

  

Item B - 34 of 39



2 of 4 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.0 GENERAL 

 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 

current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 

applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 

that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 

For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 

www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 

  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  

 

 

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 

the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 

shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 

See Standard #B-004.   

 

  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 

easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 

properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 

  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 

minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 

  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-

001. 

 

  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 

portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 

fire department and other emergency services. 

 

 

Item B - 35 of 39

file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


3 of 4 

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 

Appendix B, is 2500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 

square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.  

 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 

Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 

availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 

or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 

copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 

private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 

and shall not cross any public street. 
 

  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.  

 

  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 

required. 

 

   

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 

debris both on and off the site. 

 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-

tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 

the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 

the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 

#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 

Item B - 36 of 39



4 of 4 

 

  5.7  Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle 

hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the 

requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704.  
 

6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES 

 

  6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the 

Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If hazardous materials 

are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including 

Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material 

Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans. 

 

  6.2 Any High Piled Storage, or storage of combustible materials greater than twelve (12’) feet in 

height for ordinary (Class I-IV) commodities or storage greater than six feet (6’) in height of 

high hazard (Group A plastics, rubber tires, flammable liquids, etc.) shall be approved by the 

Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required. If High Piled Storage 

is proposed, a Fire Department High Piled Storage Worksheet shall be completed and detailed 

racking plans or floor plans submitted prior to occupancy of the building. 

 

  6.3 Underground fuel tanks, their associated piping and dispensers shall be reviewed, approved, 

and permitted by Ontario Building Department, Ontario Fire Department, and San Bernardino 

County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division. In fueling facilities, an exterior 

emergency pump shut-off switch shall be provided.  

 

Item B - 37 of 39



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Charles Mercier, Principal Planner 

 

FROM:  Emily Hernandez, Police Department 

 

DATE:  December 3, 2019 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV19-066 A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT AN 8,600 

SQUARE FOOT MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING LOCATED AT 1129 

WEST FOURTH STREET.  

 

 

The Ontario Police Department has reviewed the site plan for PDEV19-066 and has public safety 

concerns with the trash enclosure and landscaping, located on the southeast side of the property. 

The east wall creates a hidden space, or void on the east side of the enclosure and doesn’t not allow 

for surveillance or visibility in that area. The Ontario Police Department is requiring the trash 

enclosure be moved to the southwest side of the property, south of the intersecting point of the 

north/south and east/west drive aisles, and oriented with the front of the enclosure facing north. 

This requirement is to avert any future trespass and/or homeless loitering issues that can negatively 

affect business. 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited to, 

the requirements below. 

 Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways, stairwells, 

and other areas used by the public shall be provided. Lights shall operate via photosensor. 

Photometrics shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures 

proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 

Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 The applicant will be responsible for keeping the grounds of the business clean 

from debris and litter. 

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the buildings as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint on 

a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the addressed 

street. 

 The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the 

Standard Conditions. 

 

The Applicant is invited to contact Officer Emily Hernandez at (909) 408-1755 with any questions 

or concerns regarding these conditions.    

Item B - 38 of 39



Item B - 39 of 39



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
January 22, 2020 

DECISION NO.: DAB Decision No. 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-001 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a stealth wireless telecommunications facility 
(Verizon Wireless) and an equipment enclosure totaling 348-square feet on approximately 5-acres of land, 
located at 3151 East Riverside Drive (Creekside Park), within the OS-R (Open Space-Recreational) zoning 
district. (APN:  1083-151-02); submitted by Verizon Wireless 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

VERIZON WIRELESS, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-001, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). The City of Ontario has entered into an agreement with the 
Applicant to lease the site and thus allowing Verizon Wireless to construct the proposed wireless 
telecommunications facility.  

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of approximately 5 acres of land located at
the northeast corner of Riverside Drive and Turner Avenue, at 3151 East Riverside Drive, and is depicted 
in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. The site is owned by the City of Ontario and is developed with a 
public park (Creekside Park). Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan 
land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Creekside Park OS-R (Open Space 
Recreational) 

OSR (Open Space 
Recreational) N/A 

North: Grace Yokley Middle 
School PS (Public School) CIV (Civic) N/A 

South: Single Family 
Residential Homes 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential - 2.1 to 5 

du/acre) 
N/A 

East: 
Southern California 

Edison (SCE) 
Easement 

OS-NR 
(Open Space/Non-

Residential) 

Creekside 
Specific Plan 

Non-Recreational 
Open Space 

West: Single Family 
Residential Homes 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential - 2.1 to 5 

du/acre) 
N/A 

Item C - 1 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 2 

(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to construct 
a 65-foot tall stealth wireless communication facility (monopine) and related 348 square foot equipment 
enclosure. The proposed Verizon Wireless telecommunications facility will be located on the northeast 
corner of Creekside Park as part of the City sponsored construction of a prefabricated fiber optics 
equipment building. The Verizon Wireless telecommunications facility will be setback approximately 10 feet 
from the north (Grace Yokley Middle School) property line, 20 feet from the east (SCE corridor) property 
line, 180 feet from the south (Riverside Drive) property line, and over 850 feet from the west (Turner 
Avenue) property line (see Exhibit C—Detailed Site Plan & Landscape Plan, attached). 
 
Access to the proposed wireless facility will be taken from an existing park drive aisle located along the 
southeast portion of Creekside Park, through a 12-foot wide access road secured by a swing gate. To 
comply with Development Code’s parking requirements, one nonexclusive parking space will be provided 
adjacent to the wireless telecommunications lease area (see Exhibit C—Detailed Site Plan & Landscape 
Plan). 
 
The maximum height allowed for a collocated wireless telecommunications facility within the OS-R (Open 
Space Recreational) zone is 65 feet. The proposed height of the telecommunication antennas is 65 feet 
and will be co-locatable in full compliance with Development Code requirements. Furthermore, the facility 
will enhance wireless coverage within the immediate area, as shown on attached Exhibits F and G—
Propagation Maps. 
 
The proposed monopine and ground mounted equipment will be enclosed and screened from public view 
by a 10-foot tall, decorative masonry block equipment enclosure, which is to be constructed by the City. 
Additionally, the City’s Information Technology Department is planning to construct two (12 feet X 16 feet), 
prefabricated fiber optics buildings within the equipment enclosure area, which will provide additional fiber 
optic support services to surrounding residents and businesses. 
 
The proposed stealth (monopine) design is compatible with the current use of the site and will not interfere 
with the surrounding area. The monopine design will be integrated with the park’s landscaping. To further 
enhance the site, the Applicant will be providing three 24-inch box Canary Island Pine trees, which will be 
located around the facility. Additionally, 15-gallon shrubs, mulch ground cover, and irrigation will be 
provided adjacent to the proposed decorative masonry equipment enclosure (see Exhibit C—Detailed Site 
Plan & Landscape Plan). 
 
The proposed monopine location allows Verizon Wireless an opportunity to provide additional coverage in 
the area. The wireless coverage maps (propagation maps) depict coverage before and after the 
construction of the proposed wireless facility (see Exhibit F—Propagation Map without Predicted Coverage 
Area, attached). The proposed facility will enhance Verizon’s wireless coverage within the area and will 
also provide better communication reception in the form of fewer dropped calls and improved public safety 
(see Exhibit G—Propagation Map with Predicted Coverage Area, attached). 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application; and 
 

Item C - 2 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 3 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2020, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision making body for 
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record 
for the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all 
written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
guidelines, which consists of projects characterized as infill development, and meets the following 
conditions: 
 

 The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 
general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations 

 The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than 
five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses 

 The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; 
 Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, 

air quality, or water quality 
 The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services 

 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 

forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

Item C - 3 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 4 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the decision making body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed project is located within the OS-R (Open Space 
Recreational) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the OSR (Open Space Recreational) 
zoning district. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be 
constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed wireless 
telecommunication facility will provide infrastructure compatibility and will be aesthetically pleasing and in 
context with the community character (LU2-6). Furthermore, the proposed development is consistent with 
City Council goals, such as: invest in the growth and evolution of the City’s Economy, maintain the current 
high level of public safety, and focus resources in Ontario’s commercial and residential neighborhoods; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the OSR (Open 
Space Recreational) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (stealth 
wireless telecommunications facility), as-well-as intensity, parking setbacks, structure height, number of off-
street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 

Item C - 4 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 5 

the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, and City Council Priorities and Policy Plan 
components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, structure height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking dimensions, design and landscaping, on-site landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-
as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the proposed stealth 
telecommunications facility. As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined 
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with 
the development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and 
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of January 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item C - 5 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 

 
 

GRACE YOKLEY 
MIDDLE SCHOOL 

Item C - 6 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—Enlarged Site Plan 
 

  
Existing Driveway 

Item C - 7 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—Detailed Site Plan & Landscape Plan 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed 10-FT 
Perimeter Screen walls 

Proposed Pine Trees 

12-Foot Wide Access Road 

9’ X 18’ Parking  
Space 

Item C - 8 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit D—EAST & NORTH ELEVATIONS 
 

 
 
 EAST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION 

Item C - 9 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit E—WEST & SOUTH ELEVATIONS 
 

 

WEST ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION 

Item C - 10 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 11 

 
Exhibit F—PROPAGATION MAP WITHOUT PREDICTED COVERAGE AREA 

 

 
 

Project Site 

Item C - 11 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 12 

 
Exhibit G—PROPAGATION MAP WITH PREDICTED COVERAGE AREA 

 

 

Project Site 

Item C - 12 of 25



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-001 
January 22, 2020 
 
 

Page 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item C - 13 of 25



Item C - 14 of 25



Item C - 15 of 25



Item C - 16 of 25



Item C - 17 of 25



Item C - 18 of 25



Item C - 19 of 25



Item C - 20 of 25



Item C - 21 of 25



Item C - 22 of 25



Item C - 23 of 25



Item C - 24 of 25



Item C - 25 of 25


	20200122_DAB Agenda
	AGENDA
	January 22, 2020
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency
	John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department


	20200122_Item A-Minutes
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20200122_Item B-PDEV19-066
	20200122_Item C- PDEV19-001



